REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS DESIGN BUILD SERVICES FOR THE JIM NED CISD AG BARN FACILITY PROJECT

March 18, 2024

Table of Contents

Section 1. Request for Qualifications	1
1.1 General Notice	1
1.2 Overview	1
1.3 Conceptual Schedule	1
1.4 Construction Costs	1
1.5 Status of Existing Design and Permitting	1
1.6 Additional Information and Procurement Process	1
1.7 Acknowledgement of RFQ	2
1.8 Procurement Conference	2
1.9 Delivery of SOQs and Procurement Schedule	2
1.10 Point of Contact	3
Section 2. Instructions to Proposers	5
2.1 Defined Terms	5
2.2 RFQ	6
2.3 SOQ Submittal	6
2.4 Interviews	7
2.5 Withdraw of SOQs	7
2.6 Opening of SOQs	8
2.7 Evaluation of SOQs	8
2.8 Project Security and Insurance	9
2.9 Conflict of Interest	9
2.10 Requirements for Professional Services	10
2.11 Inspection and Construction Materials Testing	10
2.12 Services Provided by the Design-Builder	10
2.13 Self-Performance of Construction Work	11
2.14 Prevailing Wages	11
2.15 Validity of SOQs	11
2.16 Responsiveness	11

	2.17 Owner Not Responsible for Assumptions by Proposer	12
	2.18 Rights and Reservations of the Owner	12
	2.19 Requirements to Keep DB Team Intact	13
S	Section 3. Statement of Qualifications	14
	3.1 SOQ Submission Requirements	14
	3.2 Requirements for the SOQ	14
	3.3 SOQ Format	15

Attachment A

Additional Information

Attachment B

RFQ Required Submissions

SECTION 1. Request for Qualifications

1.1 General Notice

1.1.1 The Jim Ned CISD ("Owner") extends this Request for Qualifications ("RFQ") to solicit a Statement of Qualification ("SOQ") from any interested party ("Proposer") for Design-Build (DB) Services ("Services") for the Jim Ned CISD Ag Barn Facility ("Project").

1.2 Overview

1.2.1 The Owner is in need of a barn facility, pre-engineering metal buildings and site improvements that provide for the agricultural activities, storage and equipment needs of the school. The selected site of this new facility will be on school-owned property located in Tuscola, Texas. The particular area will be an approximate 10-acre plot located in the western section of the school's 55.5-acre property. The facility is planned to consist of a pre-engineered metal building structure on a concrete slab with 4 insulated doors with openers and 2 roll-up style doors with varying height clearance. Within the building there will be office/concession rooms, restroom/storage rooms, 2 wash bays and future pens. The project includes, but may not be limited to a concrete foundation, earthwork, driveway improvements, utility infrastructure, plumbing, electrical, HVAC, office/concession rooms, restroom/storage rooms, overhead doors, on-site sewage facility, insulation as well as the labor, materials and equipment necessary to complete all work.

1.3 Conceptual Schedule

1.3.1 The Project must be completed by November 22, 2024.

1.4 Construction Costs

1.4.1 The conceptual construction cost value of this project is \$1,000,000.

1.5 Status of Existing Design and Permitting

1.5.1 The Owner has a preliminary design for the Ag Barn Facility. At this time, they have not obtained any permits that may be required.

1.6 Additional Information and Procurement Process

1.6.1 At this time, the Owner is contemplating the use of the design—build project delivery method. The procurement and the provision of Services will be in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2269, Subchapter G and this RFQ. Selection of the Design-Builder will be made using a two-step procurement and selection process.

- 1.6.2 Services required consist of design and construction services, ("Services") as further described in the RFQ.
- 1.6.3 In accordance with the Texas Government Code Section 2269.304, a design-build firm must be a sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation or other legal entity or team that includes an architect or engineer and a construction contractor.
- 1.6.4 The Owner intends to enter into a Design-Build Agreement ("Agreement"), a copy of which will be included in the Request for Proposals (RFP) for this Project. It is anticipated that the Agreement will be a Cost + Fee with an option for GMP. The Agreement will be administered on an "open book" arrangement relative to the cost of work.
- 1.6.5 Additional information related to this Project can be found on Attachment A to this RFQ.

1.7 Acknowledgement of RFQ

1.7.1 Each potential Proposer shall provide the Point of Contact, within **five (5) business days** of receipt of this RFQ, an acknowledgement that it has received the RFQ and is a potential Proposer. Such acknowledgement shall identify and provide full contact information for the Proposer Contact (name of firm, point of contact person, mailing address, phone number, email address), who shall be the Proposer's single point of contact for the receipt of any future documents, notices and addenda associated with this RFQ. Such acknowledgement must be sent in writing and a copy electronically transmitted to the Point of Contact.

1.8 Procurement Conference

1.8.1 A procurement conference will be held on Thursday, April 4, 2024 beginning at 11:00am at Jim Ned CISD, 441 Graham Street, Tuscola, TX, 79562.

1.9 Delivery of SOQs and Procurement Schedule

1.9.1 For the SOQ to be accepted, the SOQ must be received at one of the addresses shown below no later than 12:00pm on Tuesday, April 2, 2024. SOQs received after this time will be returned unopened. Address SOQs to:

Jim Ned CISD 441 Graham Street Tuscola, Texas 79562

1.9.2 Procurement Schedule

Activity	Date
Issue RFQ	March 18, 2024
SOQ Preparation Period	March 18, 2024- April 2, 2024
Proposer Meeting- Procurement Conference	April 4, 2024
Submission of SOQs	April 2, 2024
Review and evaluation of SOQs	April 4, 2024
Interviews (optional)	April 4, 2024
Final review and evaluation of SOQs	April 4, 2024
Short List Determination and Issuance of RFP	April 4, 2024

1.9.3 The Owner assumes no obligations, responsibilities and liabilities, fiscal or otherwise, to reimburse all or part of the costs incurred or alleged to have been incurred by parties considering a response to and/or responding to this RFQ. All such costs shall be borne solely by each Proposer.

1.10 Point of Contact

1.10.1 To ensure fairness during the procurement process, until the Agreement is executed, Proposers and their employees, representatives and agents shall not contact an Owner staff, member of selection committee, Jim Ned CISD School Board member, or any other official, employee, representative or consultant (identified immediately below of the Owner) involved with this procurement process other than the Point of Contact identified in section 1.10.2 of this RFQ.

Owner Representatives and Consultants: NA

1.10.2 All communication and direct questions regarding this RFQ and Project are to be submitted by email specifically referencing this RFQ, to the Point of Contact. Modifications to the RFQ can only be made by Addenda.

Point of Contact: Hunter Cooley – Chief Financial Officer

Email Address: hcooley@jimned.esc14.net

1.10.3 All communications are subject to distribution to all Proposers except that Owner will endeavor to prevent disclosure to other Proposers' information unique to a particular Proposer or otherwise identified as proprietary or confidential by a Proposer. The Owner will share with all Proposers all addenda to this RFQ including any revisions based on its review of Proposer comment and questions concerning this RFQ. The Owner disclaims the accuracy of information derived from any source other than the Owner Representative Contact identified above, and the use of any such information is at the sole risk of the Proposer. Only answers and responses issued

by formal addenda shall be final and binding upon the Owner. Oral and other interpretations shall be without legal effect and Proposer shall not rely on such oral and other interpretations.

SECTION 2. Instructions for Proposers

2.1 Defined Terms

- 2.1.1 Terms used in the RFQ will have the meanings indicated in this RFQ.
- 2.1.2 For purposes of this RFQ and when used elsewhere in this RFQ the following definitions shall apply:
 - A. **Proposer** means the corporate entity or firm that submits the SOQ in response to this RFQ, seeks to be shortlisted by the Owner as a Shortlisted Proposer to respond to an RFP and seeks to be awarded the Agreement with the Owner for the Project and if selected for the Project will execute the Agreement.
 - B. **Design-Builder** means the Shortlisted Proposer selected for the Project and awarded the Agreement that will execute the Agreement.
 - C. Shortlisted Proposer means a Proposer who is invited, based on the Owner's evaluation and ranking of the SOQS received in step one of this procurement, to submit a proposal in response to an RFP.
 - D. **DB Team** means the team formed by the Proposer for purposes of responding to the RFQ.
 - E. **DB Team Member** means a corporate entity or firm or individual included in the DB Team and identified in the SOQ that will provide any of the Services for this Project.
 - F. **Lead Designer** means the Proposer or DB Team Member having primary responsibility for engineering and design services for the entire Project.
 - G. **Lead Constructor** means Proposer or DB team Member having primary responsibility for construction services for the entire Project.
 - H. **Services** means those services provided by the Design-Builder for design services and construction services described in this RFQ.
 - Subconsultant means an individual or entity having a direct contract with the Design-Builder
 or with any other Subconsultant for the performance of part of the Services.
 - J. **Subcontractor** means an individual or entity having a direct contract with the Design-Builder or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of part of the Work.
 - K. Work means the entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be provided under the contract documents. Work includes and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services and documentation necessary to produce such

construction and furnishing, installing and incorporating all materials and equipment into such construction, as required by the contract documents.

2.2 RFQ

- 2.2.1 Neither Owner nor Owner's Representatives and Consultant assumes any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of an incomplete RFQ.
- 2.2.2 Proposers are required to submit an SOQ for consideration in being short listed to receive the RFP and subsequent award of the Agreement for the Services.
- 2.2.3 Prior to the SOQ submission deadline stated in this RFQ, submit all questions about the meaning or intent of the RFQ, Addenda and the related supplemental information to the Point of Contact as indicated in the RFQ. Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by the Owner in response to such questions will be issued by Addenda. Addenda will be transmitted by email. Questions received less than 7 days prior to the date for opening of SOQs may not be answered.
- 2.2.4 Owner will make copies of RFQ available on the above terms only for the purpose of obtaining SOQs to determine the Proposers that are ranked the highest that will be short-listed to receive the RFP and does not confer a license or grant permission or authorization for any other use. The ranking will be in accordance with the evaluation criteria and weighting described in the RFQ.

2.3 SOQ Submittal

- 2.3.1 Proposers are required to submit an SOQ for consideration in being short listed to receive the RFP and subsequent award of the Agreement for the Services.
- 2.3.2 The SOQ shall be completed and submitted in accordance with Section 3 of the RFQ.
- 2.3.3 Before submitting an SOQ:
 - A. Examine and carefully study the RFQ, including any addenda and the related supplemental information identified in the RFQ.
 - B. Become familiar and satisfied with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations that may affect cost, progress, or the provisions of the Services.
 - C. Carefully study and correlate the information known to Proposer with the RFQ, Addenda and the related supplemental information identified in the RFQ.
 - D. Promptly give Point of Contact written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Proposer discovers in the RFQ, Addenda and the related supplemental information.

2.3.4 All materials submitted to the Owner become public property and are subject to the Texas Public Information Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 552. If the SOQ contains proprietary information that the Proposer does not want disclosed, each page containing such information must be identified and marked "PROPRIETARY" at the time of submittal. Owner will, to the extent provided by law, endeavor to protect such information from disclosure. Proposers will be notified in writing by Owner if proprietary information is requested and Proposer will be given an opportunity to request from the Texas Attorney General that the information be withheld. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to identify proprietary information will result in all unmarked sections being deemed non-proprietary and available upon public request. Proposers shall not be permitted to mark their entire SOQ as proprietary.

2.4 Interviews

- 2.4.1 The Owner, at its sole discretion, may choose to conduct interviews with any or all Proposers to provide Proposers a better opportunity to demonstrate their qualifications and experience and how they can provide the best value to the Owner for this Project.
- 2.4.2 If the Owner chooses to conduct interviews Proposers will be notified of:
 - 1. The time and place for the interview.
 - 2. Interview format and agenda.
 - 3. Individuals that are expected to participate in the interview as a minimum.
- 2.4.3 The Owner will consider the information provided in these interviews and reassess, if appropriate and necessary the rankings of those Proposers. Using information from the SOQs and the interview the Owner will make the final determination as to the highest ranked SOQs.
- 2.4.4 Failure to participate in the interview may result in disqualification from consideration for the Project.

2.5 Withdrawal of SOO

- 2.5.1 Deliver the document to the place where the SOQs are to be submitted prior to the date and time for the opening of the SOQs.
- 2.5.2 Proposers may withdraw an SOQ by providing a written request, duly executed by an authorized representative, and delivered to the Owner at any time prior to the SOQ submittal deadline or within 24 hours after SOQs are opened. If withdrawal is after SOQs are opened, the written request shall demonstrate to the reasonable satisfaction of the Owner that there was a material and substantial mistake in the preparation of its SOQ. Individuals making the withdrawal will be required to provide evidence of serving as an authorized representative of the Proposer.

2.6 Opening of SOQs

2.6.1 SOQs will be publicly opened at the time and place indicated in this RFQ. Owner will publicly acknowledge receipt of SOQs received in time to be considered. The names of Proposers submitting an SOQ will be read aloud at this time and place. There will be no further discussion of the SOQs or the procurement process and no questions or comments will be received at this time and place.

2.7 Evaluation of SOQs

- 2.7.1 Within 45 days after the date of opening the SOQs, the Owner will evaluate and rank each SOQ with respect to the evaluation criteria and weighting described in this RFQ. In evaluating SOQs, Owner will also consider whether or not the SOQs fully comply with the RFQ submittal requirements.
- 2.7.2 In considering SOQs, Owner will evaluate, score and rank the SOQs in accordance with the evaluation criteria and weighting set forth in this RFQ to determine the SOQs that are the highest ranked. The Owner can select up to five Shortlisted Proposers to receive the RFP. At this time, the Owner contemplates selecting three Shortlisted Proposers. The Owner is desirous of maximizing the use of the local (Jim Ned CISD) engineering community and other professional services firms for this Project. Proposers are requested to consider this when responding to this RFQ.
- 2.7.3 The SOQs will be evaluated using the criteria and weighting indicated in the table below.

Evaluation Criteria	Weight
Compliant SOQ Transmittal Letter; Financial Information, Ability to provide bonds and insurance	Pass/Fail
Proposer and DB Team Profiles	10
Proposer and DB Team Qualifications and Experience	35
Project Organization and Key Personnel	30
Project Approach	20
Prior Experience with Contractor in the District	5
Total	100

2.7.4 Material misstatements and/or inaccuracies in the information submitted in the SOQs that was relied upon for evaluation, scoring and ranking may be grounds for rejection of the SOQ for this

Project. Any material misstatements and/or inaccuracies, if discovered after award of the Agreement may be grounds for immediate termination of the Agreement, at the Owner's sole discretion. Additionally, the Proposer will be liable to the Owner for any additional costs or damages to the Owner resulting from such misstatements and/or inaccuracies, including costs and attorney's fees for collecting such costs and damages.

2.7.5 Submission of an SOQ indicates Proposer's acceptance of the evaluation criteria and weighting contained in the RFQ as well as Proposer's recognition and acknowledgement that subjective judgments must be made by the selection committee during the evaluation.

2.8 Project Security and Insurance

2.8.1 Project Security

- A. With the submission of the SOQ and as an attachment to the SOQ Transmittal Letter, Proposer will be required to submit a Letter of Intent from Proposer's surety verifying the Proposer's ability to provide the bid bond, performance and payment bonds as required and documenting the commitment from its surety to provide such bonds.
- B. The bonds must be issued by a surety legally authorized to do business in the State of Texas.

2.8.2 Insurance

- A. With the submission of the SOQ and as an attachment to the SOQ Transmittal Letter, Proposer will be required to submit a Letter of Intent from Proposer's insurance company stating Proposer's ability to acquire and provide the required insurance for the Project.
- B. The required insurance shall be obtained and maintained from insurance companies authorized to do business in the State of Texas and to issue insurance policies for the limits and coverages so required.
- C. The insurance requirements are as follows:
 - Statutory workers compensation insurance: (as required by state law)
 - Employer's liability insurance: \$1.0 million
 - Commercial general liability insurance: \$1.0 million per occurrence; \$ 1.0 million annual aggregate
 - Commercial automobile liability insurance: \$1.0 million combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage
 - Pollution liability: \$1.0 million each occurrence and in the aggregate
 - Excess liability insurance above the employer's, general, pollution and automobile insurance: \$10.0 million per occurrence

2.9 Conflict of Interest

- 2.9.1 Texas Local Government Code Chapter 176 requires the public disclosure of certain information concerning persons doing business or seeking to do business with the Owner, including affiliations and business and financial relationships such persons may have with Owner officers. The Conflict of Interest Questionnaire is included in RFQ Attachment B.
- 2.9.2 Proposer shall complete and submit this Questionnaire and include it with the SOQ Transmittal Letter

2.10 Requirements for Professional Services

- 2.10.1 Proposer shall secure any required services for the Project that are defined as professional services under the Professional Services Procurement Act, Chapter 2254 of the Texas Government Code (for example, registered professional land surveyors, professional architects and professional engineers using the qualifications-based selection process prescribed by that Chapter). Each architect or engineer or professional services firm that is a member of a design-build team must be selected in this manner. Designed facilities will comply with the Texas Administrative Code, Title 19, Part 2, Chapter 61, Subchapter CC, Rule §61.1040 regarding School Facilities Standards for Construction on or after November 1, 2021.
- 2.10.2 The Owner is desirous of maximizing the use of the local engineering community and other professional services firms for this Project. Proposers are requested to consider this when responding to this RFQ.

2.11 Inspection and Construction Materials Testing

2.11.1 The Design-Builder will be required to provide quality control services in accordance with the contract documents. Independent of those Design-Builder services, and in accordance with Texas law, the Owner will provide or contract for inspection services, testing of construction material engineering and verification testing services necessary for acceptance of the Project. The Design-Builder will be required to provide management for coordination of these services.

2.12 Services Provided by the Design-Builder

- 2.12.1 The Services to be provided will consist of design and construction services which will be more fully described in the draft Agreement that will be included in the RFP. Constructed facilities will comply with the Texas Administrative Code, Title 19, Part 2, Chapter 61, Subchapter CC, Rule §61.1040 regarding School Facilities Standards for Construction on or after November 1, 2021. For purposes of the RFQ the services will generally consist of:
 - A. Design services including preparing and submitting intermediate design review packages and design quality assurance.

- B. Preconstruction services (contractor input) consisting of constructability reviews, cost estimating and scheduling.
- C. Permitting activities to secure the permits needed for design and construction are the responsibility of the Design-Builder.
- D. Construct the project through self-performance and use of subcontractors with responsibility for project safety, project controls, project quality control, subcontractor management, project site security and management, etc.
- E. Project close out services and transition to Owner operations.
- F. Warranty services.

2.13 Self-Performance of Construction Work

- 2.13.1 At this time, the Owner contemplates that self-performance will be allowed for the Project and there will be no limitation as to the amount of self-perform Work the Design-Builder could undertake for the Project. The Owner also decided that for the Design-Builder to self-perform Work, it shall submit a bid or proposal in the same manner as all other trade subcontractors and be selected by the Owner as the low responsive bid or best value proposal.
- 2.13.2 Proposer shall indicate in its SOQ the Proposer's intention to pursue self-perform Work for the Project. Proposer shall also indicate any DB Team Member's intention to pursue Work. This information should be included in Section 1 of the SOQ.
- 2.13.3 The Owner is desirous of maximizing the use of the local contracting community for this Project. Proposers are requested to consider this when responding to this RFQ.

2.14 Prevailing Wage Rate

2.14.1 Minimum wage rates will be required for the Project. Wage rate schedules will be provided by the Owner in the RFP.

2.15 Validity of SOQs

2.15.1 The SOQ will remain in full force and effect for sixty (60) days after the SOQ submission date.

2.16 Responsiveness

2.16.1 To be deemed responsive, SOQs must be prepared thoroughly; be responsive to the requirements and criteria contained in the RFQ; demonstrate an ability to meet the requirements of the RFQ and conform to the material terms and/or conditions of the RFQ, all as determined solely by the Owner. The Owner will reject an SOQ if it is materially incomplete, takes

excessive exceptions to material terms and/or conditions of the RFQ or contains information that does not appear to demonstrate an ability to meet the RFQ requirements, all as determined solely by the Owner. The Owner will apply reasonable judgment, balance and discretion in deciding whether an SOQ is responsive.

2.17 Owner Not Responsible for Assumptions by Proposers

2.17.1 Each SOQ shall present the assumptions that the Proposer has incorporated into its SOQ. Neither the acceptance by the Owner of a SOQ, nor the participation of the Owner at any interview with the Proposer, shall in any way be interpreted as an agreement or approval by the Owner that the assumptions are reasonable or correct or that the Owner accepts any liability for the Proposer's SOQ. The Owner specifically disclaims responsibility or liability for any Proposer's assumptions in developing its SOQ.

2.18 Rights and Reservations of the Owner

- 2.18.1 In connection with this procurement process, the Owner reserves to itself all rights (which rights shall be exercisable by the Owner at its sole discretion) available to it under applicable law, including without limitation, the following with or without cause and with or without notice:
 - A. The right to cancel, withdraw, postpone or extend RFQ in whole or in part at any time prior to the award of the Agreement without incurring any obligations or liabilities.
 - B. The right to issue a new RFQ or to revise and modify, at any time prior to the SOQ submittal date, information included in the RFQ including but not limited to the dates set or projected and factors to be considered in evaluating SOQs and the responsibilities of the Proposers.
 - C. The right to modify the procurement schedule.
 - D. The right to waive deficiencies, informalities and irregularities in an SOQ and accept and review a non-conforming SOQ.
 - E. The right to suspend and terminate the procurement process or to terminate evaluations of SOQs received at any time.
 - F. The right to correspondence with the Proposers to seek an improved understanding of SOQs at any time.
 - G. The right to request an interview with any or all Proposers during the SOQ evaluation period.
 - H. The right to seek or obtain data and information from any source that has the potential to improve the understanding and evaluation of the SOQs.
 - I. The right to appoint and change appointees of any selection committee.
 - J. The right to use assistance of outside technical and legal experts and consultants in the evaluation process.

- K. The right to respond to all, some or none of the inquiries, questions and/or requests for clarification received relative to this RFQ.
- L. The right to seek clarifications from any Proposer to fully understand information provided in the SOQ.
- M. The right to request additional information from a Proposer during the evaluation of SOQs.
- N. The right to reject an SOQ containing exceptions, additions, qualifications or conditions not called for in the RFQ.
- O. The right to conduct an independent investigation of any information, including prior experience identified in an SOQ by contacting project references, accessing public information, contacting independent parties or any other means.

2.19 Requirements to Keep DB Team Intact

2.19.1 The DB Team proposed by Proposer, including but not limited to the DB Team Members, Key Personnel and Alternate Key Personnel identified in the SOQ, shall remain on Proposer's DB Team for the duration of the procurement process and , if the Proposer is awarded the Agreement, the duration of the Project. If circumstances require a proposed change, it must be submitted in writing to the Point of Contact. The Owner, in its sole discretion, will determine whether to authorize the change. Unauthorized changes to the Proposer's DB Team at any time during the procurement process may result in the elimination of the Proposer from further consideration.

SECTION 3. Statement of Qualifications

3.1 SOQ Submission Requirements

- 3.1.1 Proposer shall provide an original SOQ and six (6) printed copies of the SOQ.
- 3.1.2 Proposer shall also provide one digital copy of the SOQ in portable document format (pdf) on a compact disk or other media. The SOQ is to be a single file that will print to match the printed copy provided. Confidential information may be provided in a separate file, provided that file is referenced in the SOQ. The Owner assumes no liability for differences in information contained in the printed SOQ and that contained in the digital copy. In the event of a discrepancy, the Owner will rely upon the information contained in the original printed SOQ.
- 3.1.3 Proposer shall enclose the SOQ and copies in separate opaque sealed envelopes plainly marked with the Project name, the name and address of the Proposer. Address an outer envelope to the mailing address shown in the RFQ and enclose the sealed packages. The Proposer assumes full responsibility for ensuring that the SOQ and copies arrive at the prescribed location before the prescribed time

3.2 Requirements for the SOQ

- 3.2.1 The SOQ must include, as a minimum, the information described in this Section. Failure to submit the required information in the SOQ may result in the Owner considering the SOQ as non-responsive and may result in rejection of the SOQ by the Owner.
- 3.2.2 Except for charts, schedules, exhibits and other illustrative and graphical information, all information shall be prepared on 8.5" x 11" white paper, except where specifically excepted in this RFQ. Charts, schedules, exhibits and other illustrative and graphical information may be on 11" x 17" paper, but must be folded to 8.5" x 11". All printing, except for the front cover of the SOQ and any appendices, must be a font of not less than 11-point and be double-sided. A double-sided page shall be considered two (2) pages for purposes of the page limitations. Audio visual materials including audio tapes, video tapes and CD Rom material will not be accepted.
- 3.2.3 Proposers are instructed to limit the information included in the SOQ to the information necessary to demonstrate the technical, financial and other qualifications and experience for the Project and any other information specifically requested in this RFQ. SOQs should be prepared in a straightforward and concise manner. The Owner is not interested in receiving marketing brochures, promotional material, generic narratives, elaborate binding, colored displays, etc. in the SOQs. Emphasis should be placed on clarity and completeness of content and responsiveness to the RFQ requirements.
- 3.2.4 Proposers must provide the information requested in the RFQ. Information is requested, subject to the page limits indicated. Failure to include the information completely and clearly may result in lower scores in the evaluations. The following are exempted from the page limit:

- A. SOQ front and back cover and Section dividers
- B. Organization Chart(s)
- C. Documents in RFP Attachment B
- D. Resumes
- E. Responses to Direct Financial Questions
- F. Surety and Insurance Letters

3.2.5 SOQ Format

- A. The SOQ shall be submitted in the following format as indicated below:
 - 1. Cover Letter.
 - 2. Section 1: SOQ Transmittal Letter and required attachments
 - a. Letter from surety
 - b. Letter from insurance company
 - c. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
 - 3. Section 2: Proposer and DB Team Profiles
 - 4. Section 3: Proposer and DB Team Qualifications and Experience
 - 5. Section 4: Project Organization and Key Personnel
 - 6. Section 5: Project Approach.
 - 7. Section 6: Financial Information
 - 8. Section 7: Resumes

3.3 SOQ Format

3.3.1 Cover Letter

A. Proposers are free to submit a two (2) page cover letter of their choice.

3.3.2 SOQ Transmittal Letter

A. Proposer shall complete all blanks, type or print the required information and execute as indicated. Submit the completed and executed Letter and all required attachments.

3.3.3 Proposer and DB Team Profiles- Three (3) page limit

- A. Proposer shall provide information as to the history of the Proposer, ownership, organization and other background information including lines of business and service offerings, locations of home and other offices, years in business and providing design and/or construction services, including DB services for DB projects, growth over time in terms of number of projects, size of projects, types of projects, firm revenue, number of employees, etc. This narrative shall identify the Lead Designer and Lead Constructor. This narrative should also include a description of any other names the Proposer has had in its history and any related company that is named in the SOQ as to having relevant experience.
- B. Provide the names of any DB Team Members. Provide brief summary information as to its history, ownership, organization and other background information including lines of business

and service offerings, locations of home and other offices, years in business and providing design and/or construction services, including DB services for DB projects, growth over time in terms of number of projects, size of projects, types of projects, firm revenue, number of employees, etc.

C. Proposer shall indicate in this section the Proposer's intention to pursue self-perform Work for the Project. Proposer shall also indicate any DB Team Member's intention to pursue Work. With the intention, the types of work should be identified.

3.3.4 Proposer and DB Team Qualifications and Experience- Ten (10) page limit)

- A. Provide verifiable examples of three (3) design projects for similar building projects with a total cost of \$1M to \$3M completed by the Proposer and/or Lead Designer. The project profile will include:
 - 1. Name and location of project.
 - 2. Project Owner.
 - 3. General description of project and scope of work.
 - 4. Construction cost of project.
 - 5. Describe if design was completed on time and within owner's budget. If not describe the reasons and circumstances for delays and increased costs.
 - 6. Indicate the involvement (roles and responsibilities) of any of the Key Personnel or Alternate Key Personnel proposed for this Project.
 - 7. Describe any aspects of the project and actions taken by the Proposer that demonstrates why the Proposer could provide the best value to the Owner and/or that would differentiate the Proposer from the other Proposers.
 - 8. Provide an owner reference for the project- name, title, email address and telephone number.
- B. Provide verifiable examples of three (3) construction projects for similar building projects with a total cost of \$750,000 to \$3,000,000 completed by the Proposer and/or Lead Constructor. The project profile will include:
 - 1. Name and location of project.
 - 2. Project Owner.
 - 3. General description of project and scope of work.
 - 4. Bid amount and final contract amount. If there is a difference, please explain the reasons for such difference.
 - 5. Bid substantial and final completion dates and final substantial and final completion dates. If there is a difference, please explain the reasons for such difference.

- 6. Change order history on project.
- 7. Indicate the involvement (roles and responsibilities) of any of the Key Personnel proposed for this Project.
- 8. Describe any aspects of the project and actions taken by the Proposer that demonstrates why the Proposer could provide the best value to the Owner and/or that would differentiate the Proposer from the other Proposers.
- 9. Provide an owner reference for the project- name, title, email address and telephone number.
- C. Provide verifiable examples of three (3) DB projects completed by the Propose and/or DB Team Member as the design-builder. DB projects for similar are preferred but could also include non-pre-engineered metal building structures for any building types. The project profile will include:
 - 1. Name and location of project.
 - 2. Project Owner.
 - 3. General description of project and scope of work, including a description of the services provided directly by the Proposer.
 - 4. Name and location of project.
 - 5. GMP amount and final GMP amount. If there is a difference, please explain the reasons for such difference. If a lump sum arrangement, indicate as such.
 - 6. GMP Proposal substantial and final completion dates and final substantial and final completion dates. If there is a difference, please explain the reasons for such difference.
 - 7. Change order history on project.
 - 8. Indicate the involvement (roles and responsibilities) of any of the Key Personnel proposed for this Project.
 - 9. Describe any aspects of the project and actions taken by the Proposer that demonstrates why the Proposer could provide the best value to the Owner and/or that would differentiate the Proposer from the other Proposers.
 - 10. Provide an owner reference for the project- name, title, email address and telephone number.
- D. Provide a brief summary of Proposer's Health and Safety Program. Please provide a completed the Proposer Safety Questionnaire which is included in Attachment B to this RFQ. Please note, Proposers with an EMR higher than 1.0 may be disqualified as a Proposer for the Project.
- 3.3.5 Project Organization and Key Personnel Five (5) page limit
 - A. Describe the functional role and services that will be provided by the Proposer and any DB Team Members. Describe the history of the prior working relationships between Proposer

- and any DB Team Members working on any past projects. Provide a brief description of the managerial structure proposed for this Project including the reporting relationships.
- B. Provide an organizational chart(s) for this Project showing the functional structure of Proposer's Project team with lines identifying the significant positions and participants (both firms and individuals or positions) who are responsible for the major elements of the provision of the Services and the critical support elements. Key Personnel positions indicated on the organizational chart must have named individuals. Charts shall indicate the anticipated percent of each person's/position's time that will be committed to the Project.
- C. Proposer shall designate Key Personnel proposed for the Project. Key Personnel include the Project Manager, Design Manager, Preconstruction Manger, Project Superintendent, Safety Manager and Quality Control Manager. DB experience is preferred but not required. The Preconstruction Manger will participate and be responsible for the constructor constructability, scheduling and estimating input to the design effort. The Project Superintendent must be dedicated to this Project full time for the duration of the Project.
- D. Proposer shall provide in a tabular format the Key Personnel that are involved in active projects and indicate the information listed immediately below. Table is not subject to the page limit.
 - 1. Name of the active project
 - 2. Owner name of active project
 - 3. Percent of time used for this assignment
 - 4. Estimated project completion date
 - 5. Date individual will be available to provide services on this Project.
- E. Include in tabular format the identification and a brief narrative that describes the roles and working relationship of any of the proposed Key Personnel that worked together on any of the projects included in the SOQ or other projects.
- F. For Key Personnel involved in DB projects, please provide a narrative that summarizes their collective experience in providing services for DB project
- G. Provide a resume for each Key Personnel. Resumes shall not be more than two (2) pages per individual. The Proposer must provide the services of the proposed Key Personnel for the life of the Project as a condition of qualification. Failure to provide the proposed Key Personnel or may result in the disqualification of the Proposer.

3.3.6 Project Approach

A. Subject to a five (5) page limit, Proposer shall describe its specific Project approach to provide the Services to deliver a high quality, on time and on budget Project. The narrative should also describe the Proposer's commitment for local involvement in this Project.

3.3.7 Financial Information

A. Financial Information and Bank Reference

- 1. Completion and submission in this Section of the Financial Resources Data Form. This Form is included in Attachment B of this RFQ.
- If the Proposer is a consortium, a joint venture, LLC or a partnership, the SOQ shall identify
 the parties and relationships. Each participating party or firm of such consortium, joint
 venture, LLC, or partnership shall provide Financial Resources Date Form and Bank Credit
 Reference
- B. Each Proposer shall submit the information requested below and include in this Section. If any of this information is not provided, the reason for its omission shall be stated. If the Proposer is a consortium, a joint venture, LLC or a partnership, the SOQ shall identify the parties and relationships. Each participating party or firm of such consortium, joint venture, LLC, or partnership shall provide the information requested below.

C. Direct Financial Questions

- 1. The purpose of this section is to elicit information pertaining to unfavorable circumstances or events that have the potential to adversely impact the Proposer's ability to honor its contractual commitments in the provision of the Services. To the extent that any of these questions are answered in a manner that indicates that any of these unfavorable circumstances or events have occurred, it is the responsibility of the Proposer to describe the unfavorable circumstance or event and provide sufficient information to demonstrate that the unfavorable circumstance or event will not adversely impact the Proposer's ability to honor its contractual commitments in the provision of the Services. Responses to these questions are for Proposer and any predecessor name(s) of Proposer.
 - a. Material Adverse Changes in Financial Position. Within the last three years, describe any material, historical, existing or anticipated changes in financial position of the Proposer including any material changes in the mode of conducting business, mergers, acquisitions, takeovers, joint ventures or divestitures.
 - b. Bankruptcy. Has the Proposer ever declared bankruptcy or filed for protection from creditors under state or federal proceedings? If so, when and describe the impact it would have on the ability to undertake this Project.
 - c. Liabilities and/or Potential Liabilities. List and briefly describe any pending or past legal proceedings within last three years and judgments or any contingent liabilities in which the Proposer or any parents, affiliates and subsidiaries of the Proposer was or is a party that could adversely affect the Proposer's financial position or ability to undertake this Project.
 - d. Completion of Contracts. Within the last three years has the Proposer failed to complete any contract or has any contract been terminated due to alleged poor performance, default or litigation?

- e. Violation of Laws. Has the Proposer been convicted of any criminal conduct or been found in violation of any federal, state, or local statute, regulation or court order concerning antitrust, public contracting, employment discrimination or prevailing wages? If so, describe the circumstances.
- f. Debarred from Bidding. Has the Proposer been debarred or are under consideration for debarment on public contracts by the federal government or by any governmental entity in Texas or any other state? If so, describe the circumstances. Is the decision under review or was it upheld by formal legal and/or grievance process?
- g. Litigation. Has Proposer been involved in litigation involving owners for construction projects that have been filed within the last three years or that are currently outstanding?

ATTACHMENT A

Additional Information

The information provided in this attachment is provided to the Proposers solely to inform the Proposer as the Owner's conceptual plan for the Jim Ned Ag Barn Facility. Actual design requirements will be scoped after the selection of the Design-Builder.

Attachment B RFQ Required Submissions

- 1. SOQ Transmittal Letter
- 2. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
- 3. Proposer Safety Questionnaire
- 4. Financial Resources Date Form

Jim Ned CISD SOQ Transmittal Letter

(To be on Proposer Letterhead)

Jim Ned CISD 441 Graham Street Tuscola, Texas 79562

	(Proposer) hereby submits its SOQ for the Jim Ned Ag Barn Facility
Project. Propos	er accepts all of the requirements, terms, and conditions of the RFQ, including
without limitati	on those dealing with the bid bond, required performance and payment bonds
and insurance.	The SOQ will remain subject to acceptance for sixty (60) days after the opening
of SOQs.	

In submitting this SOQ, Proposer certifies, represents and warrants, that:

- A. The submittal of the SOQ has been duly authorized by, and in all respects binding upon, the Proposer.
- B. The undersigned declares that it is the Proposer or by holding the position indicated below is authorized to execute this SOQ Transmittal Letter on behalf of the Proposer and that all representations made on this form are true and accurate.
- C. Proposer has examined, carefully studied and understands and agrees to be bound by the requirements of the RFQ, the other related information identified in the RFQ, and the following Addenda, receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged:

Addendum No.	Addendum Date	Signature Acknowledging Receipt

- D. All information and statements contained in the SOQ, are current, correct and complete and are made with full knowledge that the Owner will rely on such information and statements in evaluating the SOQ.
- E. The submission of this SOQ will constitute an incontrovertible representation by Proposer that Proposer has complied with every requirement of the RFQ and Addenda without exception.
- F. Proposer acknowledges that it is aware of and understands the requirements of Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code and Proposer is solely responsible for complying with such requirements.

- G. Proposer certifies that each architect or engineer that is a DB Team Member was selected based on demonstrated competence and qualifications, in the manner provided by the Texas Government Code Section 2254.004.
- H. Proposer is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local Laws and regulations that may affect furnishing the Services.
- Proposer has given Point of Contact written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Proposer has discovered in the RFQ and the written resolution thereof by the Owner is acceptable to Proposer.
- J. Proposer has provided evidence of its authority to do business in the State of Texas and included such evidence with this Form. Alternately and if selected, Proposer will covenant, with its execution of this Form, to obtain and submit evidence of such authority to the Owner not later than the date of its execution of the Agreement.
- K. Proposer further represents that this SOQ is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group, association, organization or corporation; Proposer has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Proposer to submit a false or sham SOQ; Proposer has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from making a SOQ; and Proposer has not sought by collusion to obtain for itself any advantage over any other Proposer or over the Owner.

The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this SOQ:

A. SOQ

- 1). Cover Letter
- 2). SOQ Transmittal Letter with all required attachments
- 3). Proposer and DB Team Profiles
- 4). Proposer and DB Team Qualifications and Experience
- 5). Project Organization and Key Personnel
- 6). Project Approach
- 7). Financial Information
- 8). Resumes
- B. In lieu of Proposer's covenant in item J above, evidence of Proposer's authority to do business in the State of Texas

The principal contact person who will serve as the interface between the Owner and the Proposer for all communications during the procurement period is:

Name:			
Title:			
Address:			

Telephone: Email:	
The terms used in this letter have the meanings inc with initial capital letters is described in the RFQ.	dicated in the RFQ. The significance of terms
Proposer agrees that venue shall lie exclusively in Ta	aylor County, Texas for any legal action.
This SOQ is submitted by:	
Name of Proposer and identification of Proposer (Individual; Corporation; Partnership; Joint Venture; other-specify):	
If a Joint Venture, the SOQ Transmittal Form must be signed by authorized representatives of all members of the Joint Venture. For a corporation indicate the state of incorporation with the corporate address. For a limited liability company indicate the state in which company was formed with the company address.	(typed or printed)
By: Title:	(Individual's Signature)
Proposer shall have this form notarized by a duly authorized notary public.	
Doing business as:	
Business address:	
Phone:	E-mail:

Conflict of Interest Questionnaire

Proposer Safety Questionnaire

Proposer Safety Questionnaire							
Proposer Name							
Health and Safety							
Please use your OSHA No. 200/300 logs	to record the	e number of	f injuries and i	llnesses fo	r the la	st three (3)	years.
Year (state the applicable years, use	2023 or 20)24	2023 or 2022	2	2022	2 or 2021	
most recent)							
Number of Fatalities							
Lost Work Day Cases Incident Rate -1							
OSHA Recordable Incident Rate -2							
Number of Hours Worked							
Total Number of Employees on Your							
Payroll							
Owner requires CMAR provide the above	e accident st	atistics, eve	n though cert	ain compa	nies ma	ay not be	
statutorily required to keep OSHA 200/3			_	•		•	
-1 The following formula is used for calcu	ulating the L	ost =	(Number of I	Lost work	Day Cas	ses x 200,00	0)
Work Day Incident Rate:			divided by N	umber of I	Hours V	Vorked	
-2 The following formula is used for calcu	ulating the	=	(Number of I	Recordable	Cases	X 200,000)	
OSHA Recordable Incident Rate:			divided by N	umber of I	Hours V	Vorked	
List your Worker's Compensation (WC) E	xperience N	1odification	Rate (EMR) fo	r the thre	e (3) m	ost recent y	ears:
Year (state the applicable years)		Interstate		Intrastate	ate		
2023 or 2024							
2022 or 2023							
2021 or 2022							
Is a letter from your WC insurance carrie					⁄es	No	
If your WC carrier has not issued an EMR because you have not accrued enough WC Yes No							
costs, is a copy of your WC Loss Run (ava		-	•				
If the current EMR is greater than 1.0, is			•		⁄es	No	
safety methods and procedures that are	being imple	mented to	reduce this rat	te			
attached?	OCLIA) II			,	,		
Has Proposer received an OSHA (or State	e OSHA) cita	tion within	the last five (5)	⁄es	No	
years?							
If answered yes to immediately above qu	uestion. is th	nere a copy	of the citation	(s) \	⁄es	No	
Was the citation(s) contested/vacated?		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			⁄es	No	
If answered yes to immediately							
above question, please describe							
What specific corrective actions							
were taken to prevent further							
injuries/ penalties?							
Does Proposer have a written occupational safety and health program? Yes No							
Does Proposer conduct field safety inspe	ections to de	termine cor	mpliance with	,	⁄es	No	
applicable regulations and procedures?							
Who conducts these inspections							
(provide position/title)?							
How often are safety inspections							
conducted?	•	11 2					
Does Proposer have an orientation prog	ram for new	nires?			⁄es	No	

No	Date	Training progra Hazardous Wa Hearing Conse Heavy Equipme Laboratory Saf Ladder/Scaffol Lead	ste (40 Hour rvation ent Operatio ety		
		Hearing Conse Heavy Equipmo Laboratory Saf Ladder/Scaffol	rvation ent Operation ety		
		Heavy Equipmo Laboratory Saf Ladder/Scaffol	ent Operatio ety	n	
		Laboratory Saf Ladder/Scaffol	ety	on	
		Ladder/Scaffol	•		
			ding		
		Lead			
		Lead			
		_			
		Lockout/Tag O			
		Personal Prote		nent	
		Power-actuate			
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		nt	
		Welding/Cuttir	ng		
t perfo	rm unsaf	e Yes	No		
		Yes	No		
	able State	Yes	No		
"Right to Know" laws and the OSHA Hazard Communication Standard? Does Proposer hold "tailgate/toolbox safety meetings?					
gram?		Yes	No		
	?				
		Yes	No		
mployi	ment or p	re- Yes	No		
		Yes	No		
	application applic	applicable State idard? gram? nclude?	Radiation Prote Respiratory Pro Welding/Cuttin t perform unsafe Yes Yes applicable State idard? Yes gram? Yes nclude? Yes	yes No applicable State Yes No dard? Yes No gram? Yes No nclude? Yes No mployment or pre- Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No	

Financial Resources Form

Proposer Name:	

	Financial Metric	2022	2023	2024
A.	Operating Revenues			
В.	Operating Expense (not including Depreciation and Amortization)			
C.	Depreciation and Amortization			
D.	Operating Income (A-B-C)			
E.	Net Income			
F.	Total Assets			
G.	Current Assets			
Н.	Total Liabilities			
I.	Current Liabilities			
J.	Net Worth (Equity) (F-H)			